ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 27, 2011
3:03 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Kel ler, Chair
Representative Alan Dick, Vice Chair
Representati ve Bob Herron

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Bob Ml ler
Representative Charisse MIlett

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to report

W TNESS REG STER

Bl LL STREUR, Acting Conm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a power point overview of
Department of Health and Social Services.

ALI SON ELGEE, Assistant Conmi ssioner

Central Ofice

Fi nance and Managenent Services

Depart nent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented a power point overview of
Department of Health and Social Services.

t he

t he

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -1- January 27, 2011



DAVE COTE, Director

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Al aska Pi oneer Hones

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the overview of
Departnent of Health and Social Services.

MELI SSA W TZLER- STONE, Director

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during the overview of
Department of Health and Social Services.

CHRI STY LAWTON, Acting Director

Central Ofice

Ofice of Children's Services

Depart nent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the overview of
Department of Health and Social Services.

DR. WARD HURLBURT, Director and Chief Medical Oficer

Central Ofice

Di vision of Public Health

Depart nent of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the overview of
Department of Health and Social Services.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:03: 02 PM

CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 03 p. m
Representatives Keller, Dick, Herron, Seaton, G ssnha, Mller,

and MIllett were present at the call to order.

OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

3:03:24 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the only order of business would be
an overview by the Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) .

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 2- January 27, 2011



3:04:46 PM

Bl LL STREUR, Acting Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), explained that
this overview would not delve into budget detail. He referenced
the handout entitled, "2011 Priorities' [Included in nenbers'
packets.] and relayed that the DHSS m ssion was to pronote and
protect the health and well being of Alaskans, and its vision
was for all individuals and famlies to be healthy, safe, and
producti ve. He listed the first DHSS nmjor priority, substance
abuse and nental health, and declared that each were significant

i ssues in Al aska. He summarized the major strategies to deal
with this: prevention and health pronotion, early intervention,
treatnent services, and recovery. He noted that this was a

lifelong process. He directed attention to the second priority,
health and wellness, and ascertained its nmjor strategies to
i ncl ude: prevention and health pronotion, disease control,
access, energency response and preparedness, and environmental
health inpacts. He elaborated on the next priority, health care
access and delivery, and listed these mmjor strategies to
i nclude: technology for sustainable and effective health care
delivery, workforce devel opnent, and enhanced nmanagenent of high
heal t h needs. He enphasized the need for an electronic health
records system

3:10: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that providers had concerns for
connectivity with the DHSS system

3:11: 31 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR acknow edged that ol der systens may
need to be updated; however, he pointed out that the Health
I nformati on Exchange worked with a variety of systens. He
offered his belief that there would be many fewer problens than
feared initially.

3:12:13 PM

CHAI R KELLER opined that there was still a long way to go, as
only 18 percent of providers had signed on.

3:12: 47 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR agr eed. He suggested that the first
step was to entice providers to convert to electronic health

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 3- January 27, 2011



records, and then for the providers to recognize the value of
participation with the Health Informati on Exchange. He directed
attention to federal financial support for the state and the
providers for conversion. He elaborated on the workforce
devel opnment advancenents around Al aska.

3:14: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked about the current billing problens
with tel enedicine.

3:16:19 PM

ACTING COW SSI ONER  STREUR, in response to Representative
Cissna, shared that a change in regulations would resolve this
pr obl em He observed that telenedicine prograns |owered
transportation costs by 40 percent.

3:17: 47 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR, in response to Chair Keller, said
that very little would change for the provider with the Mdicaid
Managenment | nformation System (MM S) system He confirmed that
nore than 78 percent of clains were submtted el ectronically.

3:18: 18 PM

CHAI R KELLER asked what steps DHSS was taking to make the work
force nore attractive.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR replied that DHSS was working wth
the University of Alaska on strategies to entice and retain a
skilled workforce. He confirmed that the State of Al aska
offered few incentives, such as |oan repaynent or forgiveness
progr ans. He offered his belief that there was an effort from
the Al aska State Legislature to bring an incentive program
f orwar d. He stated the inportance of a work environment in
whi ch the providers wanted to stay.

3:19:34 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR summarized that "15 percent of the
popul ati on consunes 75 percent or 85 percent of the health care
dollar."™ He pointed to the necessity for enhanced nmanagenent of
hi gh heal th needs. He assessed the next mmjor priority to be a
sustainable long term care delivery system and identified its
strat egi es: identify and coordinate health and welfare need,

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -4- January 27, 2011



pronote a service array that neets the needs of underserved who
require long term care services, and develop an integrated and
conpr ehensi ve nodel of care.

3:21:29 PM
ACTING COW SSIONER STREUR presented the final priority,

vul nerabl e Al askans, and the need to provide protective
services, which included the pronotion of donestic violence and

sexual assault progranms, and suicide prevention prograns. He
updated the Bring the Kids Hone initiative, sharing that
al though 90 kids were still out of state, this was down from

more than 400 ki ds.
3:23:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if there was a neans for the public
to track the Bring the Kids Hone program

3:24: 34 PM

ACTI NG COMW SSI ONER STREUR replied that he would research this,
but he did not know of any website to track this.

3:24: 49 PM

CHAI R KELLER clarified that the goal for the Bring the Kids Hone
program was not to bring all the kids hone, as there were sone
needs that could not be addressed in Al aska.

3:25: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the bed capacity had been
i ncreased at the Fairbanks Boys and Grls Honme of Al aska.

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER STREUR replied that he would forward that
i nformation.

3:26:12 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR concluded his discussion of major
strategies for Vul nerable Al askans. He reported that expansion
of the Family First Initiative would help famlies |eave the
publ i c assistance rolls.

3:26:55 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- January 27, 2011



CHAIR KELLER expressed his appreciation for the enphasis on
"individual and famly responsibility and engagenent, and
communi ty engagenent."

3:27:47 PM

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER STREUR, referring to the PowerPoint entitled
"2011 Al aska Departnent of Health and Social Services Overview "
[Included in nenbers' packets] explained the Al aska Departnent
of Health and Social Services Oganization Chart (slide 1). He
shared that DHSS was a "super agency at the national level" as
it included full health and social services wthin eight
di vi si ons. He reported that DHSS enpl oyed 3690 people, and had
a budget of $2.445 billion. He continued with slide 2, "Budget
Hi ghlights,"” explained the distribution of the noney, and
directed attention to Medicaid as the l|largest recipient, $1.513
billion.

3:29:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON prai sed the federal perfornmance bonus that
DHSS had recei ved.

ACTING COW SSIONER STREUR confirmed that a $4.4 nmllion
performance bonus had been received for the Denali Kid Care
program

3:30: 38 PM
CHAI R KELLER comuni cat ed hi s appreciation for DHSS.
3:31:10 PM

ALI SON ELGEE, Assistant Conm ssioner, Central Ofice, Finance
and Managenent Services, Departnment of Health and Socia
Services, referring to the FY 2012 budget overvi ew docunents and
the FY 2011 operating grants book, [distributed earlier to the
HHSS nenbers] shared that each of these documents contained "a
weal th of information."

3:32:41 PM
CHAI R KELLER directed attention to the details in the operating

grants book which were reflected in just a few lines of the
budget .

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 6- January 27, 2011



M5. ELCGEE relayed that grants accounted for nore than $160
mllion to the division prograrns.

3:33:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked if there were any reference to
f or mer gr ant | evel s, in order to conpare to current
di stributions.

M5. ELCEE, in response, said that although that information was
not included in this publication, it was possible for a year to
year conparison of program areas. She noted that the
avai lability of grant funding had renmained "relatively steady."

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for a nationw de conpari son.
3:34:59 PM
M5. ELCEE, pointing to slide 3, "Alaska Pioneer Hones,"

recounted that there were 5 Pioneer Honmes, wth 508 I|icensed
assisted living beds, l|located in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau,

Ket chi kan, and Sitka. In addition, there was the Palner State
Vet erans and Pioneer Hone. She explained the eligibility for
adm ssion: 65 years of age and an Al aska resident for the year
prior. She recounted that there were both active and inactive
wait lists, depending on your inmediate need. She confirned
that 500 people were currently on the active wait list for the
508 beds. She listed the range of fees, $2135/nonth to

$6170/ nont h, depending on the |evel of service. She identified
that the Palner Home had a federal obligation for veteran
pref erence. She disclosed that financial information was not a
criterion for admi ssion, and there was aid to |ook at paynment
assi stance which could include Medicaid waivers, state paynent
assi stance prograns, and veterans' assistance.

3:40: 19 PM

M5. ELGEE shared that in 1995, 63 percent of residents needed
the highest |evel of care, whereas today 88 percent required

this sane |evel of -care. She explained that a result of
progressive denmentia could include a period of assaultive
behavi or. She reported on the financial difficulty for

mai nt ai ni ng hi gher levels of staffing.

3:42: 00 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -7- January 27, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the staffing ratio was one
enpl oyee per resident.

MS. ELCGEE agreed that this ratio reflected total staffing, but
she clarified that this was not possible for a 24 hour day/ 7
day week (24/7) coverage.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked about the schedule for patient
transfers between facilities in order to maintain their |evel of
care.

3:43: 06 PM

CHAIR KELLER asked about the availability of nursing beds
t hr oughout Al aska.

M5. ELCEE, in response, said that 700 nursing home beds were

available in assisted living hones. She confirmed that 3500
patients had long term care waivers, though sone of these
patients were still in their hones.

CHAIR KELLER asked about the <coordination of care between
nursi ng homes and the Pioneer Homes.

3:44: 26 PM

DAVE COTE, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Al aska Pioneer
Honmes, in response to a question by Representative Herron, said
that should Pioneer Honme patients need nursing home care, it
becane necessary for them to nove to a nursing hone. He
acknow edged that the Pioneer Honme level of care only went to
Level 3.

CHAI R KELLER asked to define the | evels of care.

MR. COTE explained that level 3 patients needed 24 hour care
and that the Pioneer Hones were not |icensed as a nursing hone.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the nedication error rate in
Pi oneer Honmes had decreased, and if the Medicaid adm nistered
rate had increased over the prior year.

MR. COTE replied that the nedication error rate was stable, and
that the vol une of nedication was about 550,000 doses quarterly.

3:46: 39 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 8- January 27, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the issue surrounding veterans'
medi cati on packagi ng had been resol ved.

VR. COTE replied that the Veterans Adnministration (VA
medi cati ons were being directly adm ni stered by nurses.

3:47:38 PM

MS. ELCEE addressed slide 4, "Behavioral Health,"” and reported
that the Dyvision of Behavioral Health had 334 full tine
enpl oyees. She noted that 240 of the staff worked at Al aska
Psychiatric Institute (APlI) in a 24/7 operating environment.
She relayed that the mpjority of its work was done in
partnership with comunities and non-profit agencies throughout
Al aska, and it had served alnobst 19,000 people in 2010. She
established that program performance standards were built into
the grant review process. She reported that the Al aska Menta
Health Board, the Al cohol and Substance Abuse Advisory Board,
and the Suicide Prevention Council were all admnistered by the
D vision of Behavioral Health. She pointed out that patients
were often referred to APlI, where alternative treatnents at the
comunity |level would be nore appropriate.

3:51: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the earlier problenms wth
mandatory overtine and staffing at APl had been resol ved.

M5. ELGEE replied that reports regarding the use of mandatory
overtinme were being prepared, and would include both API and the
Pi oneer Hones. She stressed that the departnent worked hard to
avoid nmandatory overtine, or unplanned overtine. She pointed
out the difference with scheduled overtine, noting that the
enpl oyees participated in the scheduling.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his concern for patient safety,
regardl ess of the type of overtine.

MS. ELGEE agreed that nurses should not work nore than 14 hours
each day.

3:54: 32 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed appreciation for the ongoing
efforts fromthe Division of Behavioral Health. She asked about

the availability of comunity health care jobs for recent
gr aduat es.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - O- January 27, 2011



MELI SSA W TZLER- STONE, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of
Behavioral Health, in response to an earlier question by
Representative Herron, said that the Fairbanks Boys and Grls
Home had 60 beds, of which 56 were currently occupied. She
added that 44 of the patients were Level 5 and 16 were Level 3.

3:57:38 PM

CHAIR KELLER asked if APl care was both in-patient and out-
patient.

M5. STONE replied that there was only in-patient care, and there
were 80 beds.

3:58: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK questioned whether expansion to 120 beds
woul d al so result in full occupancy.

M5. STONE replied that it was nost inportant to nmintain
appropriate adm ssion decisions, and that before expansion, it
was hecessary to ensure that the system was working as
efficiently and effectively as possi bl e.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK reflected that ten years ago, people needed
service that was not avail abl e.

3:59:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about a program for internediate
st ays.

M5. STONE clarified that Representative Seaton had referred to
the designated energency stabilization and treatnent option.
She pointed out that there was a recent focus to keep people at
the local community care level, and there was now a statew de
effort to make it work effectively.

4:01: 23 PM

M5. ELCEE referred to slide 5, "Ofice of Children's Services,"
and introduced its Acting Director, Christy Lawon. She st at ed
that O fice of Children's Services (OCS) had 499 full tine
staff, organized in 5 regions with 26 field offices. She
announced that the primary purpose of OCS was to provide
protective services to children at risk of harm She pointed

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -10- January 27, 2011



out that OCS also managed the grants for the Infant Learning
Program These grants provide early chil dhood special education
services to children with devel opnental del ays. She observed
that OCS provided grant funding to 9 child advocacy centers.
She said that "the division provides a nultitude of famly
support and famly preservation services to inprove the success
of famlies in caring for children who otherwi se mght be at

risk of renoval." Its first effort was to maintain intact
famlies, where at all possible, and provide direct famly
services to enable this. She affirnmed that OCS was subject to

periodic review by its federal partners, as neasured against
federal statistics for performance and inprovenent standards.
She shared that the biggest challenge was to mmintain an
experienced staff, as this was a high stress environnent. She
pointed to an earlier survey of OCS staff which indicated that
60 percent of frontline social workers were in position for |ess
than 2 years. She reported on the realignnent of OCS resources
to create the Western Region, a result of suggestions from the
Citizens Advisory Review Panel, the court system and the
| egi sl ative del egati on. She acknowl edged that the Wasilla
office for the Southcentral region had experienced an increased
caseload, so this separate region allowed for a nore direct
managemnent . She noted that the rural offices still experienced
difficulty in hiring experienced staff.

4:05:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the Citizens Advisory Review
Panel would be naking a presentation to the House Health and
Soci al Services Standing Commttee.

CHAI R KELLER, referring to the DHSS organi zati on chart, declared
that it would allow for the comrittee to better understand the

relationship of each division and conmttee. In response to
Representative Herron, he said that the panel would neke a
presentation on a still to be determ ned date.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA refl ected on the need for foster care, as
it was an "ongoing chronic problem"” She observed that the
safest place for a child was in their own hone. She requested
regul ar updates on the foster care program to help ensure "that
these kids are getting the kind of care that gives them a better
future.™

4:12: 30 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- January 27, 2011



CHRI STY LAWQON, Acting Director, Central Ofice, Ofice of
Children's Services, Departnment of Health and Social Services,
in response to Representative Ci ssna, offered to provide data on
a regul ar basis. She agreed that kids should be in their own
home, and that the OCS enphasis was to do so, whenever it was
saf e.

4:13: 37 PM

M5. ELGEE, directing attention to slide 6, "Public Health,”
declared that there were 507 full tinme staff. She listed the
various operations to include public health nursing, vital
statistics, public health |abs, infectious disease information

licensing for health facilities, and the State Medical
Exam ner's office. She added that the division adm nistered the
st atewi de emergency services prograns.

4:15:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON summari zed an incident in Bethel with the
office of the State Medical Exanm ner, and he asked to discuss
the possibility of a policy change for rural Al aska.

DR. WARD HURLBURT, Director and Chief Medical Oficer, Centra
Ofice, Division of Public Health, Departnment of Health and
Social Services, agreed to work on that. He discussed the
reasons for the policy, and he opined that during these tinmes of
grief there could be m scomunicati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON enphasized that this was an inportant
i ssue for his constituency.

4:19: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the state's decision to no |onger
offer flu shots for adults indicated a shift away from
preventative health.

DR, HURLBURT explained that efforts by the late Senator Ted
Stevens had resulted in Alaska consistently receiving extra

federal funding for immunizations. He pointed out that Al aska
now received |less funding, but still naintained vaccinations for
chi | dren. He indicated that there was still an effort to

mai ntai n vacci nati ons for people over 65 years of age.

4:22:26 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- January 27, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported on his research about Vitamn D,
and stated his desire to work with DHSS on the use of Vitamn D
for preventative health.

CHAI R KELLER pointed out that Dr. Hurlburt was also Chair of the
Al aska Health Commi ssion, which would present an annual report
to HHSS. He stated his respect and appreciation for the
expertise and | eadership skills of Dr. Hurlburt.

4:25:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA, ref erenci ng t he Al aska State
Constitution, said that "the legislature shall provide pronotion
and protection of public health.” She pointed out that the
Division of Public Health was responsible for fulfilling this
constitutional nandate. She asked Dr. Hurlburt to elaborate on
the preventative aspect.

4:26:19 PM

DR. HURLBURT agreed that public health and prevention efforts
were inportant. He affirmed that all Al askans were patients of
the Division of Public Health, and although it did not receive
the glanour "of the high tech stuff,” prevention was inportant.
He detailed that although sone infectious diseases were still a

problem the chronic diseases, especially tobacco, were the
pr obl em now. He pointed to the progress being made for all age

groups toward cessation of tobacco use. He credited Governor
Parnell, who as a l|egislator had been instrunental in using the
tobacco settlenent noney for tobacco education. He referenced

the Center for D sease Control and Prevention (CDC) report which
stated that Al aska was the nunber one state in funding for anti
tobacco efforts. He offered his belief that now the biggest
public health challenge was the conplications from obesity and
overwei ght, as this was approaching the sanme nunber of premature
deat hs as tobacco. He referred to a CDC study which estinmated
that 33 percent of the kids born in the | ast decade were at high
ri sk of devel opi ng di abetes, conpared to a current rate of 6 - 8
percent of adults. He stressed that the econom c inpact would
be "unfat homabl e and he enphasized the inportance for a change
to the culture.

4:30: 08 PM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.

4:31: 30 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -13- January 27, 2011



CHAI R KELLER reported that the overview would continue at the
next HHSS neeti ng.

4:32: 24 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 4:32 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- January 27, 2011



